All Committee Members are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the

ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING COMMITTEE

which will be held on

Tuesday 20 October 2020 at 7.00pm

which will be held under the powers contained within the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 ("the 2020 Regulations") which came in to force on 4 April 2020. The regulations enable local councils to hold remote meetings (including by video and telephone conferencing) for a specified period until May 2021. The 2020 Regulations apply to local council meetings, committee and subcommittee meetings in England.

The link is as follows (no registration required):

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84482497971?pwd=Z3BSdERyYkZ4aGRVNmE2L2NnSzRkQ T09

Passcode: 383774

Save where Part 2 items are on the agenda, the meeting is open to the press and public.

The Chairman has agreed a 3 Minute public participation slot, if required and applicable.

Part 1 Agenda

- **1. Apologies:** To receive and accept apologies for absence. At the time of agenda despatch, there are none.
- 2. **Declarations of Interest:** To:
 - a) receive declarations of interest from Councillors on items on the agenda;
 - b) receive written requests for dispensations for declarable interests; and
 - c) grant any requests for dispensation as appropriate.
- **Minutes:** To confirm and sign the Minutes of the meetings held on 15 September 2020.

- Attached

- 4. Public Participation: To receive questions/statements from the public in relation to items on the agenda (one 3-minute slot for up to 3 Members of the Public). At the Chairman's discretion, this item may be considered at a later part of the agenda.
- **5. Planning Applications:** To consider Planning Applications from Hertsmere Borough Council.

- Attached

6. Planning Decisions: To receive any decisions reached on applications upon which the Committee submitted comments.

- Attached

7. Changes to Planning System Consultation: To consider NALC (PR 10-20) Changes to the current planning system response to MHCLG consultation.

- Attached

- **8. Neighbourhood Plan:** To consider update report from Committee Chairman concerning scoping exercise for a Neighbourhood Plan for Elstree and Borehamwood.
- **9. Band Stand Project:** To receive update report from the Town Clerk on progress with the installation of a permanent Band Stand in Meadow Park, Borehamwood.
- 10. Close of Meeting: To close meeting. The next meeting of the Environment and Planning Committee is scheduled for Tuesday 17 November 2020 at 7.00pm (Zoom Webinar).

H R O Jones Town Clerk 14 October 2020

Town Council Offices Fairway Hall Brook Close Borehamwood Hertfordshire WD6 5BT

Tel: 020 8207 1382 Fax: 020 8953 7645 clerk@elstreeborehamwood-tc.gov.uk

Distribution List:

Name	Organisation	post	e-mail	courier
Cllr S Rubner –	EBTC		X	
Brookmeadow (Town				
Mayor)				
Cllr Mrs S Parnell – Hillside	EBTC - Committee		X	X
(Deputy Mayor)	Vice Chairman			
Cllr C Butchins - Hillside	EBTC – Committee		X	X
	Chairman			
Cllr Rebecca Challice -	EBTC		X	
Shenley Road				
Cllr Richard Butler -	EBTC		X	
Cowley Hill				
Cllr A Collins - Cowley Hill	EBTC		X	X
Cllr V Eni – Brookmeadow	EBTC		X	
Cllr P Kaza - Kenilworth	EBTC		X	X
South				
Cllr S Lawrence -	EBTC		X	
Kenilworth North				
Cllr J Newmark -	EBTC		X	
Kenilworth South				
Cllr Mrs P Strack – Hillside	EBTC		X	X
Cllr Mrs F Turner - Elstree	EBTC		X	
Cllr M Vince - Cowley Hill	EBTC		X	
Library	Agenda only	X		
Borehamwood & Elstree Times	Agenda only	X		

ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting held under the powers contained within the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 ("the 2020 Regulations") which came in to force on 4 April 2020. The regulations enable local councils to hold remote meetings (including by video and telephone conferencing) for a specified period until May 2021. The 2020 Regulations apply to local council meetings, committee and sub-committee meetings in England.

The meeting was held remotely on Zoom Webinar:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82459348125

Webinar ID: 824 5934 8125

on Tuesday 15 September 2020 at 7.00pm.

Present: Cllr C Butchins (Chairman) (in the Chair)

Cllr Mrs S Parnell (Vice Chairman)

Cllr A Collins Cllr P Kaza Cllr Mrs P Strack

In attendance: HRO Jones – Town Clerk

01. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

There were none.

02. DECLARATIONS OF COUNCILLORS' INTERESTS

There were none.

03. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting of the Environment and Planning Committee held on 17 March 2020 were signed as a true record by the Chairman.

04. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was none.

05. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A total of 48 applications received from the Borough Council were examined, on 43 of which the Committee had no specific comments to make, subject to the views of neighbours.

20/0421/FUL - 3 Theobald Court, Theobald St

Retrospective application for installation of one exterior air conditioning condenser unit for first floor offices

Observation: At its meeting on 15 September 2020 the Environment and Planning Committee raised concerns that retrospective applications were outside the 'spirit' of planning legislation.

[Post Meeting Note: Comments were submitted online through the Consultee comments facility].

20/1287/HSE - 37 Penscroft Gardens WD6 2QZ

Retrospective application for single storey rear extension with pitched roof

Observation: At its meeting on 15 September 2020 the Environment and Planning Committee raised concerns that retrospective applications were outside the 'spirit' of planning legislation.

[Post Meeting Note: At the time of comment submission, no facility was available to provide online consultee comments. Comments were emailed to the Planning Department].

20/1026/HSE - Greenways House Elstree Hill South WD6 3DE

Demolition of existing garage and construction of mixed-use rear annexe to main property

Observation: At its meeting on 15 September 2020 the Environment and Planning Committee raised concerns that the proposed development was in close proximity to the boundary of the neighbouring property.

[Post Meeting Note: At the time of comment submission, no facility was available to provide online consultee comments. Comments were emailed to the Planning Department].

20/1189/PA1 - 16 Allum Lane Elstree WD6 3NS

Demolition of existing building and erection of a new building forming 31 apartments with associated landscaping (Pre Application Advice)

Observation: At its meeting on 15 September 2020 the Environment and Planning Committee raised concerns that the proposal constituted overdevelopment and the height might be out of scale with surrounding buildings.

[Post Meeting Note: At the time of comment submission, no facility was available to provide online consultee comments. Comments were emailed to the Planning Department].

20/0992/FUL - 33 Kenilworth Drive WD6 1QL

Demolition of existing garage and store and construction of new 2 storey, 3 bed dwelling adjacent to no 33 to form an end of terrace with associated landscaping and vehicular crossover

Observation: At its meeting on 15 September 2020 the Environment and Planning Committee raised concerns that the proposal constituted overdevelopment.

[Post Meeting Note: At the time of comment submission, no facility was available to provide online consultee comments. Comments were emailed to the Planning Department].

06. PLANNING DECISIONS

Details were received of decisions by the Borough Council relating to applications on which the Committee had submitted comments.

07. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Members noted that the preparation for a Neighbourhood Plan for Elstree and Borehamwood would be affected by the timings of progress with the Hertsmere Borough Council Local Plan scheduled to be finalised in 2021. In addition, the details contained in the Planning White Paper should be taken into account. It was noted that the Town Clerk was in the process of gathering information to assist the Chairman in preparing an initial report for the Committee to consider.

It was RESOLVED that:

the Committee Chairman be tasked with preparing an initial report on options for developing a Neighbourhood Plan for Elstree and Borehamwood to be considered at the Committee meeting on 20 October 2020.

08. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

The Committee received an update report from the Committee Chairman and other Members present following a liaison meeting with Hertsmere Borough Council on 18 August 2020.

09. ALLOTMENT

It was noted that Council Staff were collecting allotment rents for the 2020/21 Year. It was further noted that a water leak was repaired in September 2020 (cost £790).

It was RESOLVED that:

(i) the Council Allotment Fee scale be set as follows:

2021/22 1 October 2021 – 30 September 2022	2022/23 1 October 2022 – 30 September 2023	
1 October 2021 – 30 September 2022	1 October 2022 – 30 September 2023	
Allum Lane	Allum Lane	
• 5 pole - £25	• 5 pole - £25	
(or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	(or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	
• 7 pole - £35	• 7 pole - £35	
(or £17.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	(or £17.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	
• 10 pole - £50	• 10 pole - £50	
(or £25 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	(or £25 per annum for 60+ Citizens)	

Melrose Avenue Melrose Avenue • 2.5 pole - £12.50 • 2.5 pole - £12.50 (or £6.25 per annum for 60+ Citizens) (or £6.25 per annum for 60+ Citizens) 5 pole - £25 5 pole - £25 (or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens) (or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens) 7 pole - £35 7 pole - £35 (or £17.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens) (or £17.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens) 10 pole - £50 10 pole - £50 (or £25 per annum for 60+ Citizens) (or £25 per annum for 60+ Citizens) **Stapleton Gardens Stapleton Gardens** All Single size plots £25 per annum All Single size plots £25 per annum (or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens) (or £12.50 per annum for 60+ Citizens)

(ii) with the approval of the Town Clerk under delegated powers (emergencies relating to operational matters), £790 be utilised from the Contingency Budget (1900/109) to repair the water leak at Allum Lane Allotments.

10. BAND STAND PROJECT

It was noted that Members were seeking to set up a meeting with the new Hertsmere Borough Council Executive Director replacing the Head of Street Scene to ascertain what progress could be made with the Band Stand Project.

It was noted that the Town Council had sought for the Borough Council to deal with the planning application for the structure as the initial body responsible for managing the project and that there had been no alteration to the advice that the Meadow Park project was suspended for Covid-19 Risk Assessment purposes.

Clarification was also required pertaining to the responsibility of funding the hoarding required for the works and the pinnacle (film theme) proposed by the Town Council.

11. BUDGET 2021/22

The Committee proposed no additional Headline Items for the Draft Budget which would be submitted for consideration to the meeting on 20 October 2020.

Some Members proposed that the Council should investigate the possibility of building/converting a Community Hall in Elstree Village as a future Council and Community asset.

12. CLOSE OF MEETING

The Meeting closed at 8.00pm.	
It was noted that the next meeting of the Tuesday 20 October 2020 at 7.00pm (Zoom	Environment and Planning Committee is scheduled for Webinar).
Date:	CHAIRMAN

Environment and Planning Committee – 29 October 2020 – Planning Applications

20/1402/HSE 7 Ascot Close Elstree WD6 3JH First floor side extension and alterations to door at front and addition of new openings to rear 13 Howard Drive WD6 2NY 20/1288/13 Single storey rear extension 20/1426/HSE 41 Balmoral Drive WD6 2OJ Demolition of existing porch and construction of new porch 20/1428/HSE 105A Theobald Street WD6 4PT 2 storey rear extension to include alterations to fenestration and insertion of rooflights to side elevation 20/1429/HSE 41 Wilcox Close WD6 5PY Single storey rear extension 20/1413/FUL Travis Perkins, Chester Road Alterations to existing external racking configuration to include increase in height to 5.5m and reduction in parking space 20/1132/HSE 20 Barham Ave Elstree WD6 3PN Construction of part single, part two storey side and rear extensions. Conversion of loft to habitable room with associated roof alterations to include increase in ridge height, insertion of dormers and rooflights to front and rear elevations, front boundary work to include new access and installation of hard standing 9 West View Gardens Elstree WDT 3DD 20/1478/HSE Erection of outbuilding in rear garden (part retrospective) 7 Watling Street Elstree WD6 3EG 20/1477/HSE Single storey front and rear extensions and two storey side extension Following demolition of existing garage and conservatory 20/1479/PD42 77 Barton Way WD6 1PQ Single storey rear extension 77 Barton Way WD6 1PQ 20/1511/HSE Two storey rear extension 20/1486/HSE 35 Cowley Hill WD6 5LQ Single storey front extension and installation of hard landscaping to front boundary

224 Gateshead Road WD6 5LL

20/1136/HSE

Retention of single storey rear extension and rear timber veranda and removal of side veranda (amended description)

Environment and Planning Committee – 29 October 2020 – Planning Applications

20/1220/HSE	39 Rossington Ave WD6 4JX First floor room outpraise (amonded plans received)
	First floor rear extension (amended plans received)
20/1517/PD56	16-18 Theobald Street Change of use of first and second floors from E (offices) to C3 to create 6 x 1 bed flats
20/1528/HSE	Fernbank, Elstree Hill South Single storey rear extension and conversion of loft to habitable room with front and rear rooflights
20/1522/HSE	74 Balmoral Drive WD6 2BB Demolition of existing garden shed and construction of part single, part two storey rear extension to include insertion of rear rooflights and alterations to fenestration (revised)
20/1508/HSE	70 Wansford Park WD6 2PH Construction of single storey rear extension (Retrospective Application)
20/1537/PD42	3 Brickfield Cottages, Theobald Street Single storey rear extension
20/1534/HSE	133 Coleridge Way WD6 2AF Conversion of garage to habitable room to include removal of door and insertion of window to front elevation
20/1547/HSE	31 Holmesley Road WD6 1FU Construction of single storey rear extension
20/1533/PD42	82 Featherstone Garden WD6 2LW Single storey rear extension
20/1560/HSE	The Limes Elstree Hill South Conversion of loft to habitable room to include insertion of roof lights to front and rear elevations
20/1599/HSE	Nirmala Nivas Barnet Lane Elstree Erection of single storey rear extension and lift shaft to west flank of property
20/1555/FUL	Flat 8 The Bartons Elstree Hill North Conversion of loft to habitable room to include insertion of rooflights to front and rear elevations
20/1509/FUL	39 & 40 Ayot Path WD6 5BL Single storey front extension to nos 39 and 40

Environment and Planning Committee – 29 October 2020 – Planning Applications

20/1500/FUL 54 Grove Road WD6 5DY

Installation of hard landscaping to front of property to include

new crossover and dropped kerb

20/1561/HSE 51 Whitehouse Ave WD6 1HA

Single storey rear extension and new front porch. Raising of ridge height to create full first floor with habitable loft space above

20/1579/HSE 10 Wentworth Ave Elstree WD6 3PX

Rear extension to detached garage

201599/HSE 25 Novello Way WD6 5RT

Single storey rear extension

20/1601/HSE 112 Allerton Road WD6 4AQ

Single storey front extension and part single, part two storey rear extension. Conversion of loft to habitable room with rear dormer and

2 rooflights

20/1573/FUL Site of Former J Sainsbury Distribution Centre, York Crescent

Demolition of existing structures and construction of data centre (B8) including ancillary offices, generators, sub-station and security structures. Alterations to access and creation of internal roads and

car parking, service yards, provision of landscaping scheme

20/1604/HSE 96 Anthony Road WD6 4NB

Single storey rear extension

20/1607/HSE 6 Deacons Close Elstree WD6 3HX

Single storey front and rear extension, two storey side and rear

Extension; widening of driveway

20/1611/HSE 30 Thornbury Gardens WD6 1RF

Single storey rear extension

Environment and Planning Committee –2020 – Planning Decisions

20/0164/FUL Churchill House, Stirling Way WD6 2HP

Refuse Permission Erection of two storey roof extension with a stepped back third storey

Providing 36 residential units (26 x 1 bed, 1- x 2 bed) with associated

Amenity space, car and cycle parking and refuse provision

(Revised) (Amended 8.7.2020)

20/1287/HSE 37 Penscroft Gardens Borehamwood WD6 2QZ

Refuse Permission Retrospective application for single storey rear extension with pitched

roof





28 SEPTEMBER 2020

of Local Councils

PR 10-20 | CHANGES TO THE CURRENT PLANNING SYSTEM

I am writing in response to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 'Changes to the current planning system' consultation.

The National Association of Local Councils (NALC) is the nationally recognised membership and support organisation representing the interests of around 10,000 parish and town councils and many parish meetings in England, 70% of which are situated in rural areas. Local (parish and town) councils are the backbone of our democracy and closest to local people, providing our neighbourhoods, villages, towns and small cities with a democratic voice and structure for taking action, contributing in excess of £2 billion of community investment to supporting and improving local communities and delivering neighbourhood level services.

Executive summary

- NALC agrees with the government that the planning system could be improved and should have more emphasis on building design, (we endorse the recommendations in the report 'Living with beauty' published by the Building Better, Building Beautiful Commission: (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/living-with-beauty-report-ofthe-building-better-building-beautiful-commission).
- However, NALC urges MHCLG to re-think the changes it has proposed in the Planning White Paper and in 'Changes to the Current Planning System'. The changes would result in a democratic deficit and less community involvement and would not tackle the key issue slowing down the delivery of more housing that was identified by Sir Oliver Letwin in his report 'Independent Review of Build Out' which he presented to parliament in October 2018 (https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/752124/Letwin_review_web_version.pdf).
- Sir Oliver Letwin identified that the key problem was the market absorption rate (i.e. the rate at which builders were prepared to deliver homes which would ensure their market price in any given local area was not affected in an adverse manner). Sir Oliver, whose report was commissioned by the chancellor of the exchequer, expressed support for master planning (which is not mentioned in the current consultation documents) and the use of Section 106 agreements (which, it is proposed, should be dropped, despite these agreements having delivered significant affordable housing). Master planning







is eminently sensible and 106 agreements have been very successful in delivering affordable housing.

- Whilst the narrative in the two consultation documents says much about having a planning system that is fit for purpose, inclusive and which improves public trust, the proposals come on top of a significant extension to permitted development rights and they:
 - Dictate the amount of housing each Local Planning Authority (LPA) has to deliver, based on an algorithm geared to delivering over 300,000 housing units per year – despite a lack of verisimilitude for that over-arching figure and despite falling population projections.
 - Require LPAs to divide all land into one of three (or possibly only two) zones, ensuring that the two development zones ('Growth' and 'Renewal') together are large enough to accommodate the housing they have been instructed centrally to supply, thereby forcing the LPAs to not place land in the 'Protected' zone which would be worthy of being there.
 - Allow only 30 months for the evolution of and consultation on Local Plans and thereafter remove from principal authorities the right to decide on planning applications on a case by case basis and the right of local councils to comment upon them.
 - Abolish Sustainability Appraisals and question the value of the 'Duty to Cooperate' between neighbouring local authorities and Strategic Environmental Assessments.
 - Do nothing to strengthen Neighbourhood Plans and stop them from being overturned when principal authorities cannot meet housing delivery numbers or any land tests that may apply and do not tackle the community capacity problem if they have to be reviewed five yearly.
 - Do not recommend that a percentage of the income to LPAs from developers is automatically distributed via local councils for the benefit of their local communities.
 - Do not align with the climate change agenda (NALC has declared a climate emergency).

Consultation questions

NALC's responses to the consultation questions are as follows:

1. Do you agree that planning practice guidance should be amended to specify that the appropriate baseline for the standard method is whichever is the higher of the level of 0.5% of housing stock in each local authority area OR the latest household projections averaged over a 10-year period?





No. There are any number of pitfalls in adopting a standard methodology for complex planning issues. The proposed approach for generating housing numbers of taking three disparate baselines – existing stock levels, household projections and affordability ratios – appears to have been devised in order to arrive at a national headline housing figure of over 300,000 per year. But the intention is to only abide by the housing projection figures so long as they produce a figure of 300,000 or above. If they do not, they are to be dismissed as not robust.

of Local Councils

From our perspective, developers (as the Local Government Association recently confirmed), have been given 1 million planning permissions in the last ten years which still have not been built out – so a focus should be given to rectifying that first. Local communities will feel aggrieved if they are required to surrender more land for development when existing planning permissions have not been delivered.

NALC is calling on the MHCLG to establish a housing delivery test focused on developers which requires them to build out sites for which they have planning permission - rather than allowing a punitive system which punishes local authority areas for not meeting either artificially high housing delivery numbers (or their five-year housing land supply if this measure is in fact retained) and which forces them to accept even more development.

We doubt that the government will be able to deliver on its commitment in the White Paper to build 337,000 new homes. The government should revise its aspirations to ensure they are based on the latest ONS population figures. We would point out that since 2014 ONS household projections have declined significantly whilst the government's target has escalated. We concur that more homes are needed and that there is a dire shortage of affordable homes but we cannot support the government's contention that the country requires 300,000 homes plus every year.

2. In the stock element of the baseline, do you agree that 0.5% of existing stock for the standard method is appropriate? If not, please explain why.

No. There are undoubtedly issues around both the baselines and the headline figure. For instance, a statement in paragraph 20 maintains that diverse housing needs are taken into account. But it is not possible to find a basis for this statement. Meanwhile, the headline figure (of 300,000 or 337,000) appears to NALC to be more or less a fixed entity, despite the fact that the ONS population figures have declined since 2014 and irrespective of future variations in population predictions or any other relevant factors which may emerge. With all the





variables that actually exist, it would be very difficult to support any standard methodology but it is not possible to support this one which does not withstand serious scrutiny.

The figure of 300,000 houses per year nationally is approximately 1.2% of national stock. Consequently, many areas would have to contribute well in excess of 0.5%. Also, the proposed new methodology does not only fail to focus development on urban areas but directs it to areas which are less sustainable and where housing is more expensive.

We also think that the requirement in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for a five year land supply for housing - needs to be amended and clarified in a way which prevents developers riding roughshod over Local Plans, contrary to the wishes of local communities, endorsed planning policies and emerging and 'made' Neighbourhood Plans. We agree with the Kent Association of Local Councils that the government should amend the 300,000 target for new dwellings as ONS population figures become available. Housing allocation across authorities is fundamental and should be agreed regionally for that reason.

3. Do you agree that using the workplace-based median house price to median earnings ratio from the most recent year for which data is available to adjust the standard method's baseline is appropriate? If not, please explain why.

No, on balance. The idea of trying to second guess how the economy will react in future, particularly after COVID 19, is deeply flawed, as old methods of housing need assessment will go out of the window with more and more people working from home. We would like the government to reverse the negative impact on the availability of affordable social housing caused by factors such as the reduced contribution to Housing Associations and a failure to make use of empty properties that could be used for housing for local people.

4. Do you agree that incorporating an adjustment for the change of affordability over 10 years is a positive way to look at whether affordability has improved? If not, please explain why.

No. See position in response to Q.3. Also, local councils (e.g. Newport Pagnell) are telling us that such approaches may not last forever as it is not possible to predict yet what the impacts on house building from COVID 19 will be. We see this as an attempt to smooth calculation using trends, but we have the same concerns as for question 3. In our view, the proposed methodology would do little to address affordability. It merely places a lot of pressure on high value





w: www.nalc.gov.uka: 109 Great Russell Street,London WC1B 3LD

areas where developers would restrict their build-out rates in order to keep property values high. The demand for affordable housing would not be met.

5. Do you agree that affordability is given an appropriate weighting within the standard method? If not, please explain why.

No. NALC supports the linking of housing need calculations to affordability but it is unable to concur with any of these three propositions or with the proposition that the housing figures which emanate from the proposed new methodology should become mandatory. The affordability formula put forward has the effect of directing the biggest increase in housing numbers to areas of high demand and high housing prices. Whilst this might improve the amount of land that is made available, it will not improve the delivery of housing.

Builders will not build out at a rate which would affect the prices they can achieve. (Oliver Letwin's 2018 review of build out rates explained that builders work to a 'market absorption rate', only constructing new homes at a pace which the local market can stand without materially affecting the market price). The need is to boost the supply of affordable tenures, not the supply as a whole. The other point that NALC would make here is that less affordable housing would be delivered if the government went ahead with the idea of exempting developments of fewer than 40 or 50 homes from having to pay the proposed new levy. See again our answer to question 3. But, for the future, MHCLG needs to consider the following factors when assessing housing need:

The real issues are where is new industry that requires close proximity to the workplace to be built?

Where will tax break incentives for this to happen take place?

How much of retail sales will move to online sales, where warehousing and logistics become far more important than proximity of people to a central shopping area?

6. Do you agree that authorities should be planning having regard to their revised standard method need figure, from the publication date of the revised guidance, with the exception of:

Authorities which are already at the second stage of the strategic plan consultation process (Regulation 19), which should be given 6 months to submit their plan to the Planning Inspectorate for examination?





On balance, no. Whilst this strikes an appropriate balance between the needs of those planning authorities not already at the second stage of the strategic plan consultation process and those which are - the government must ensure that Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) can only rely on accountable and transparent evidence of housing need which they are obliged to share with local councils progressing Neighbourhood Plans. This would ensure that a failure to do so should result in the new Infrastructure Levy (IL) being payable as if relevant councils had adopted a Neighbourhood Plan. Government should be undertaking research into these questions, both to kick-start the economy and to prepare for what will be a new housing market in the future with no basis on old standard methods of assessing housing needs, that were always at best, nothing more than a guess based on past experience.

7. Authorities close to publishing their second stage consultation (Regulation 19), which should be given 3 months from the publication date of the revised guidance to publish their Regulation 19 plan, and a further 6 months to submit their plan to the Planning Inspectorate?

We do not agree. There is an element of unreality to these suggested transitional timescales. If the new methodology results in a significant change (upwards or downwards) to a local authority's housing figures, obviously, it is going to affect their need for development sites. There could also be wider impacts on other parts of the Local Plan. Are these adjustments supposed to be made without collecting further evidence and without further consultation? Certainly, the time frames proposed do not allow for either.

If not, please explain why. Are there particular circumstances which need to be catered for?

See our answer to question 6.

- 8. The Government is proposing policy compliant planning applications will deliver a minimum of 25% of onsite affordable housing as First Homes, and a minimum of 25% of offsite contributions towards First Homes where appropriate. Which do you think is the most appropriate option for the remaining 75% of affordable housing secured through developer contributions? Please provide reasons and / or evidence for your views (if possible):
 - i) Prioritising the replacement of affordable home ownership tenures, and delivering rental tenures in the ratio set out in the local plan policy.
 - ii) Negotiation between a local authority and developer.







iii) Other (please specify)

NALC does not feel able to endorse these proposals because they do not deal with the need for a range of different types of tenures to be available. These proposals are linked to the government's (apparently exclusive) commitment to home ownership as the preferred tenure despite the evidence that facilitating home ownership does not improve affordability. Shelter demonstrated in 2015 that the 'Help to Buy' scheme had added over £8,000 to the average house price and that those 'helped to buy' were able to do so at the expense of worsening the affordability situation for everyone else.

We agree with the Kent Association of Local Councils that affordable housing targets should be re-assessed and re-aggregated from a county to a regional perspective. We think that key to all housing development is the delivery of required infrastructure. GP surgeries, roads and schools should be built ahead of new housing developments – according to the government's own manifesto priorities. We also think that climate change factors and health and wellbeing factors for residents should also be considered when affordable housing targets are set. We think this also depends on existing need and demand.

9. Should the existing exemptions from the requirement for affordable home ownership products (e.g. for build to rent) also apply to this First Homes requirement?

No (the 'Changes to the current planning system' document does not appear to contain the relevant information necessary to answer this question fully). There should be a clear policy uncluttered by conditions giving ways out. One would expect the local authority to have all the facts to ensure they meet local needs for First Homes and not be governed by exemptions which could lead to fewer First Homes becoming available.

10. Are any existing exemptions not required? If not, please set out which exemptions and why.

No (the 'Changes to the current planning system' document does not appear to contain the relevant information necessary to answer this question fully). Exemptions tend to cause confusion. The Local and Neighbourhood Plans should already have dictated the number and tenure mix required.

11. Are any other exemptions needed? If so, please provide reasons and /or evidence for your views.







No (the 'Changes to the current planning system' document does not appear to contain the relevant information necessary to answer this question fully). Further exemptions would add to the confusion. The definition of key workers needs to be clearly thought about. From a local council perspective there are key workers too, working in leisure, parks, play areas, cemeteries, etc.

12. Do you agree with the proposed approach to transitional arrangements set out above?

More detailed clarification is required around the proposed transitional arrangements. For instance, what would happen to a Local Plan submitted now? Neighbourhood Plans must reflect Local Plans. If a Local Plan is in a Regulation 19 phase – and MHCLG gives 6 months for aligning it to new proposals, the Neighbourhood Plan that must relate to the Local Plan will not be at Regulation 19 stage-equivalent, and so should be given longer (say 1 year) to bring the Plan in line. We are also asking MHCLG to expressly set out the relationship that will exist between neighbourhood plans and any new types of future spatial plans.

13. Do you agree with the proposed approach to different levels of discount?

It is apparent that very high levels of discount would be required in some areas in order to bring house prices to an affordable level. This prompts the question, should significant sums be invested in this way – or would some of the money be better spent enabling affordable rented properties and / or socially rented ones? NALC also asks MHCLG to reconsider its decision to require local authorities to review their Local Plans every 5 years as this means that neighbourhood plans also have to be reviewed with the same frequency. There are capacity issues related to both types of spatial plans and, in any event, a longer period of currency would bring with it more certainty.

14. Do you agree with the approach of allowing a small proportion of market housing on First Homes exception sites, in order to ensure site viability?

No, on balance. A mix of homes (market and affordable) seems to work well and MHCLG have imposed constraints to ensure that is the way forward by insisting on a percentage of a development being affordable etc. Allowing for the ratio of affordable to market to be reversed in this way does not seem well thought through. We are also asking for the mandatory provision of protection for parishes from speculative development during the creation of Neighbourhood Plans and greater certainty that 'made' plans will be upheld.

15. Do you agree with the removal of the site size threshold set out in the National Planning Policy Framework?





No. Any new development must, by necessity, be proportionate to the existing settlement which suggests a size limit is required. Paragraph 64 says First Home Exception Sites are small sites brought forward outside the Local Plan. MHCLG cannot refer to 'small' and then leave, undefined, what is meant by the word. The size limit should be retained. Government should change the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) so that local councils (and Neighbourhood Planning bodies) have the same right as promoters / developers to appeal planning decisions. Developments must have a proportion of affordable housing.

of Local Councils

16. Do you agree that the First Homes exception sites policy should not apply in designated rural areas?

In the first instance, clarification is needed as to what constitute 'designated rural areas'. Communities need to understand whether they are in a designated area or not and how they would be affected. Clarification is also needed as to how exception sites would be treated within the different zones proposed in the Planning White Paper. It is understood, however, that the proposals change how exception sites would be used. Up to now, the purpose of exception sites has been to enable the provision of affordable housing by using sites that would not otherwise have achieved planning consent. But the proposal in 'Changes to the current planning system' is that small sites can be promoted outside the Local Plan for First Homes - but not for other tenures. Studies have shown that building owner-occupied housing in an area tends to cause prices to rise - and quite rapidly. Hence housing in that area quickly becomes unaffordable. There needs to be an exclusion of the Right to Buy extension to housing in rural areas and, where this is not possible, for priority to be given to land already preallocated by LPAs for local need.

17. Do you agree with the proposed approach to raise the small sites threshold for a time-limited period?

Only if the LPA thinks so after consultation with affected local councils. We applaud the desire to help small businesses to recover, but this approach is not right for rural areas. Furthermore there is no telling how long the COVID restrictions and their impact will last. Smaller sites making a contribution to affordable housing are more acceptable to rural communities than larger ones. Other ways of supporting SME builders with their cashflow should be considered such as subsidised loans, VAT exemption for a specified period, tax breaks. It is important not to trade off help for SMEs with a reduction in supply of affordable homes. The government should give local councils the freedom to spend what should be a statutorily fixed share of Infrastructure Levy monies (developers'







contributions) on leisure and recreation facilities – or other community facilities – as they judge to be necessary.

18. What is the appropriate level of small sites threshold? i) Up to 40 homes ii) Up to 50 homes iii) Other (please specify)

Other – see 16. We need much more affordable housing, not less. It has been estimated that if SMEs were allowed to completely forego affordable housing provision for sites of up to 50 units, it would lead to a reduction of affordable housing of between 10% and 20%. A far better way to secure employment for small builders is to make it a requirement of large build sites that a percentage of the available land is sold off to small builders, at a 'reasonable price' that does not see huge margins on original cost of site. However, we agree with the Kent Association of Local Councils that, as matters currently stand, authorities have to maintain a 5 year housing land supply and maintain a retrospective housing delivery test and - on the ground - the two are not compatible.

19. Do you agree with the proposed approach to the site size threshold?

No. Local councils should be legally consulted on site size threshold up to 40 homes – see 16. Our view is that land banking is one of the major reasons for lack of home building, be this by developer or land ownership, and we accept that both are occurring.

20. Do you agree with linking the time-limited period to economic recovery and raising the threshold for an initial period of 18 months?

No, on balance. Developers of large sites are taking an unnecessarily long time to build, as developers like to hold their price levels by building no more than 100 homes per year. Any new planning system should robustly counteract that by insisting that a major development site (anything over 50 homes) must be completed (not just started) no less than 3 years from the date of detailed planning application. This would ensure major developers work collaboratively with minor builders to get many more workers onto site at the same time, and would have the beneficial effect of reducing house prices.

21. Do you agree with the proposed approach to minimising threshold effects?

No. Forty or fifty homes on one site in a small rural community is a lot and could change the character of that community. Proportionality should be a factor if this idea is introduced. Also, it has to be said that short term economic boosts for







specific sectors historically only tend to be effective for as long as the initiative lasts.

22. Do you agree with the Government's proposed approach to setting thresholds in rural areas?

NALC would repeat here a point it made earlier in this consultation response and that is that circumstances vary around the country and even within local authority areas. Consequently, it would be better to leave this matter to each LPA. Also, communities preparing neighbourhood plans need a 'breathing space' in which to plan and national planning policy and guidance must explicitly recognise this.

23. Are there any other ways in which the Government can support SME builders to deliver new homes during the economic recovery period?

Yes – by engaging with local councils and LPAs on housing sites and allocations through neighbourhood plans. The government should be examining ways to help local authorities to deliver social housing. MHCLG must be aware that the ability for a community to shape its area through neighbourhood planning is an important part of the social role of planning. Methods of collaboration between major and minor builders can vary from a straight supply and demand agreement to purchase of land subject to conditions of build. No planning applications on adjoining sites that could share a common build should be allowed to come forward in piecemeal ways.

24. Do you agree that the new Permission in Principle should remove the restriction on major development?

No, on balance. This should be optional for LPAs to decide whether it is appropriate case by case to remove such restrictions. Communities should always be consulted where major developments are concerned. The detailed planning stage is where the average person and Neighbourhood Plans can have the most influence.

25. Should the new Permission in Principle for major development set any limit on the amount of commercial development (providing housing still occupies the majority of the floorspace of the overall scheme)? Please provide any comments in support of your views.

Yes, on balance. A limit should be imposed and communities (including local councils) should be consulted on the size of commercial development as needed - especially in rural areas.







26. Do you agree with our proposal that information requirements for Permission in Principle by application for major development should broadly remain unchanged? If you disagree, what changes would you suggest and why?

Yes. But more information is needed when consulting local councils. Without this phase important contributions to landscaping, amenities, nature of schooling, community centres, public open space and all the other very important issues for residents are ignored. These items are only touched on very briefly during the outline planning phase, so the detailed planning phase is required to ensure that places are built which people want to live in.

27. Should there be an additional height parameter for Permission in Principle? Please provide comments in support of your views.

Yes. A ceiling should be set for the number of storeys a building can be built to and local councils / the community should be consulted on heights during the application process. There should also be a requirement when submitting planning applications that all plans should have dimensions for all proposed buildings, including the height above ground level, and the distance from the plot boundary. This also depends on the local character of the area.

28. Do you agree that publicity arrangements for Permission in Principle by application should be extended for large developments? If so, should local planning authorities be:

- i) required to publish a notice in a local newspaper?
- ii) subject to a general requirement to publicise the application or
- iii) both?
- iv) Disagree

Both. The more publicity local councils have access to for permission in principle applications for large developments, the better.

29. Do you agree with our proposal for a banded fee structure based on a flat fee per hectarage, with a maximum fee cap?

NALC has no view on this question.

30. What level of flat fee do you consider appropriate, and why?

We have no view on this. But it should strike a balance between what SMEs can afford to pay and what large developers should pay.







31. Do you agree that any brownfield site that is granted Permission in Principle through the application process should be included in Part 2 of the Brownfield Land Register? If you disagree, please state why.

Yes - but there needs to be a national housing land supply policy which does not have such a totally negating effect on so many neighbourhood plans.

32. What guidance would help support applicants and local planning authorities to make decisions about Permission in Principle? Where possible, please set out any areas of guidance you consider are currently lacking and would assist stakeholders.

NALC believes that permitted development rights should come within the purview of LPAs and Neighbourhood Planning Fora.

33. What costs and benefits do you envisage the proposed scheme would cause? Where you have identified drawbacks, how might these be overcome?

Our concerns are that communities and local councils will not be consulted enough; that despite the need for more balanced development – development will be excessive, that developers will simply sit on housing permissions, and quality of builds will suffer.

34. To what extent do you consider landowners and developers are likely to use the proposed measure? Please provide evidence where possible.

We think it will be widely used. But neighbourhood planning must be factored in here. NPs cannot be completely side-tracked by PiP. NP is the best way local councils and communities will likely have a say on housing in their communities. As MHCLG seeks to promote NP in urban areas it needs to create a direct link between NP and PIP.

35. In light of the proposals set out in this consultation, are there any direct or indirect impacts in terms of eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and fostering good relations on people who share characteristics protected under the Public Sector Equality Duty?

Not that we know of.

Should you require any further information on this response please do not hesitate to contact Chris Borg, policy manager, on 07714 771049 or via email at chris.borg@nalc.gov.uk.



t: 020 7637 1865 e: nalc@nalc.gov.uk w: www.nalc.gov.uk a: 109 Great Russell Street, London WC1B 3LD

Yours sincerely,

SIBONET.

Cllr Sue Baxter

Chairman of NALC

© NALC 2020